
 
County Offices 

Newland 
Lincoln 

LN1 1YL 
 

15 July 2022 
 

Planning and Regulation Committee 
 

A meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee will be held on Monday, 25 July 2022 at 
10.30 am in Council Chamber, County Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL for the transaction 
of business set out on the attached Agenda.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Debbie Barnes OBE 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Membership of the Planning and Regulation Committee  
(15 Members of the Council) 
 
Councillors I G Fleetwood (Chairman), Mrs C L E Vernon (Vice-Chairman), P Ashleigh-Morris, 
T R Ashton, Mrs A M Austin, S A J Blackburn, I D Carrington, A M Hall, Mrs A M Newton MBE, 
Mrs M J Overton MBE, N H Pepper, R P H Reid, N Sear, P A Skinner and T J N Smith 
 
 

Public Document Pack





PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE AGENDA 
MONDAY, 25 JULY 2022 

 
 
Item 
 

Title 
 

Pages 
 

1.  Apologies/replacement members  
 

 

2.  Declarations of Members' Interests  
 

 

3.  Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Regulation 
Committee held on 4 July 2022  
 

5 - 12 

4.  COUNTY MATTER APPLICATIONS  
 

 

4.1   For change of use from Use Class B1/haulage depot to end of 
life vehicles (ELV) dismantling facility at V.W. Breakers UK 
Ltd, The Old Smithy, Highgate, Leverton - V.W. Breakers UK 
Ltd, (Agent: Design and Management.co.uk) - B/22/0201  
 

13 - 34 

 

 

Democratic Services Officer Contact Details  
 
Name: Rachel Wilson 

 
Direct Dial 07796 994874 

 
E Mail Address democraticservices@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Please note:  for more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting 
 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports 
 
Contact details set out above. 
 
Please note: This meeting will be broadcast live on the internet and access can be 
sought by accessing Agenda for Planning and Regulation Committee on Monday, 
25th July, 2022, 10.30 am (moderngov.co.uk) 
 
For more information about the Planning process and to view Planning decisions 
please click on the following link:  Planning Portal 
 
All papers for council meetings are available on: 
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/council-business/search-committee-records 
 

 

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=6235&Ver=4
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=6235&Ver=4
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/planning/find-planning-application
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/council-business/search-committee-records


This page is intentionally left blank



  1 

 
 PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
 4 JULY 2022 

 

 

PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR I G FLEETWOOD (CHAIRMAN) 
 
Councillors Mrs C L E Vernon (Vice-Chairman), T R Ashton, Mrs A M Austin, I D Carrington, 
A M Hall, Mrs A M Newton MBE, N H Pepper, R P H Reid, N Sear, P A Skinner and T J N Smith 
 
Councillor C E H Marfleet attended the meeting as an observer via Microsoft Teams. 
 
Officers in attendance:- 
 
Jeanne Gibson (Programme Leader: Minor Works and Traffic), Martha Rees (Solicitor), Marc 
Willis (Applications Manager) and Rachel Wilson (Democratic Services Officer) 
 
5     APOLOGIES/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P Ashleigh-Morris, S A J Blackburn and 
Mrs M J Overton MBE. 
 
6     DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 
There were no declarations of interest at this point in the meeting. 
 
The Chairman highlighted that in relation to agenda item 4.1, some members present had 
not visited the site locations in the Bailgate on 14 March 2022 with the rest of the 
Committee.  He advised that those members who had not visited, but had a good knowledge 
of the Bailgate may still vote on this item if they wish. 
 
The Chairman also highlighted that a couple of e-mails in relation to the Bailgate scheme had 
been received over the weekend, and these had been circulated to the Committee in 
advance of the meeting.  
 
7     MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND REGULATION 

COMMITTEE HELD ON 6 JUNE 2022 
 

RESOLVED 
 
 That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 6 June 2022 be signed by the 
 Chairman as a correct record. 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



2 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
4 JULY 2022 
 

 

8     TRAFFIC ITEMS 
 

9     LINCOLN, BAILGATE AND CHAPEL LANE - PROPOSED REVISED PERMIT PARKING 
SCHEME 
 

The Committee considered a report which proposed a revised scheme for the introduction 
of a residents permit scheme in Bailgate and Chapel Lane.   
 
In February 2022, a report was brought to the Committee for a proposal to introduce a new 
residents permit scheme in Bailgate and Chapel Lane named Zone 4H.  Following a 
consultation with residents and businesses in the area, sufficient support was established for 
a scheme to be viable and a consultation took place whereby it was proposed to change all 
the existing limited waiting bays on Bailgate to the north of Westgate, and those at the 
south end of Chapel Lane, to dual use.  They would be available to all for up to a one hour 
stay and for an unlimited period for permit holders.  The bays in these areas were 
predominantly residential in nature and so would provide permit bays close to their users. 
 
Many representations were made in response to the proposal, both in support and in 
opposition to it.  Summaries of these representations were contained in the report to the 
Committee on 14 February 2022.  Three options were put to the Committee in February, and 
following discussion resolved that Option 3 should be pursued– that further work to identify 
a means by which a permit scheme may be introduced in some form, but with less potential 
impact on Bailgate’s economy and community.  A site visit for members subsequently took 
place on 14 March 2022, and a revised proposal, detailed at Appendix B to the report, had 
been put forward for consideration. 
 
The revised proposal would reduce the number of existing limited waiting bays in Bailgate 
which would be changed to accommodate permit holders.  However, potential permit 
holders residing in Bailgate and Chapel Lane would have access to an extension to the 
adjacent residents permit zones. 
 
The report set out two potential options for the committee to consider: 
 

 Option A – Proceed with the previous scheme as advertised so that the existing 1 
hour limited waiting bays in Bailgate north of Westgate and on Chapel Lane, as 
shown at Appendix A to the report, are made available to permit holders for an 
unlimited period. 

 Option B – Proceed with statutory consultation and public advertisement of the 
revised scheme as shown at Appendix B to the report. 

 
Officers advised that if Option A was selected, it could be implemented within 1 – 2 months, 
Option B would take approximately 3 – 4 months to process with a further report to this 
Committee at the end of the year should objections be received. 
 
Councillor K E Lee was invited to address the Committee as the local member for Ermine and 
Cathedral, and points highlighted to the Committee included the following: 

Page 6



3 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 

4 JULY 2022 
 

 

 She had previously spoken at the meeting in February 2022 about the concerns and 
the impacts this would have on local residents. 

 This was about fairness for everybody.  The residents were willing to share the 
spaces. 

 It had been demonstrated that there was ample parking in the area, which four or 
five car parks close by. The issue was about access to free parking. 

 
Councillor R B Parker was invited to address the Committee as the local member for Lincoln 
Carholme, and points highlighted to the Committee included: 

 He wished to represent the views of both residents and businesses. 

 Key parts of the uphill Lincoln economy were struggling, and the City of Lincoln car 
parks were important to attract tourists.  The on street parking spaces were mainly 
used by local people doing their shopping, or collecting prescriptions etc. 

 The revised proposal would have a lesser impact but would still affect the make up of 
the area. 

 It was highlighted that local businesses also had the support of Visit Lincolnshire and 
Lincoln BIG. 

 The residents parking scheme would substantially benefit those residents that lived 
in the area, as some did have to park significant distances from their homes. 

 A number of those people who had signed the petitions were not local residents. 

 The new scheme should be welcomed, particularly with the extension of the 
neighbouring permit zones which would increase the number of spaces available. 

 It was important that any new scheme was fair, and the Committee was urged to 
support Option B. 

 
The Chairman proposed that the Committee consider a further Option (C) – which was to 
leave the current parking as it was.  If it did become a pinch point in the future, there would 
be the potential for part of the scheme to be revised if necessary. 
 
It was commented that it seemed an uninspired approach to turn parts of the Bailgate into 
residents parking. Residents were already making their own arrangements, and when they 
moved there, they did so knowing there was no/limited parking.  There was a need to look at 
options which did not encourage more cars into an already cramped part of Lincoln. 
 
On a motion proposed by Councillor I G Fleetwood and seconded by Councillor P A Skinner, 
it was: 
 
RESOLVED (9 for, 3 abstentions) 
 
That the proposed scheme be abandoned and the on street parking in the area  remained 
unchanged. 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



4 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
4 JULY 2022 
 

 

10     BURWELL, A16 & MUCKTON ROAD - PROPOSED 30MPH SPEED LIMIT 
 

The Committee considered a report in connection with a reduction of the existing 40mph 
speed limit through the village of Burwell.  Investigations had indicated that this may be 
considered a ‘Borderline Case’, as defined within the Speed Limit Policy and a 30mph limit 
may be introduced subject to the approval of the Committee.  Following a fatal road traffic 
accident on the A16 within Burwell village several residents requested that the existing 
40mph speed limit be reduced to 30mph, and subsequently an assessment was carried out 
in line with the criteria set out in the County Council’s Speed Limit Policy.  The existing speed 
limit had been in place for many years and would be the results of a speed survey which 
determine if the level can be reduced.  Speed survey equipment located at the site identified 
in Appendix B to the report, measured a mean speed of 35mph.  This lies within 3pmh of the 
level required to justify a 30mph speed limit, as specified in the Policy, and was therefore a 
borderline case in accordance with 4.2 of the policy. 
 
Councillor C E H Marfleet was invited to address the Committee via Microsoft Teams, as the 
local member for Louth Wolds.  His comments were as follows: 

 He very much supported the request for a reduction to 30mph, as there had been 
many accidents in this area, as it was a very fast stretch of the A16. 

 It was welcomed that Highways was examining the speed on the approach from the 
north of the village, as the village was constantly under pressure from speeding 
vehicles. 

 The Burwell-Muckton road was a very narrow road, and any incidents could cause 
traffic to be diverted. 

 It was also requested whether there could be a parent-child Slow Down sign installed 
as he was aware that families regularly walked along this road. 

 
There was support from the Committee of a reduced speed limit, as it was agreed it was a 
fast stretch of road, and members also commented that they would like to see the southern 
approach to the 30mph limit reviewed with some urgency.  Officers agreed that the 
southern approach could be examined. 
 
On a motion proposed by Councillor I G Fleetwood and seconded by Councillor T R Ashton, it 
was: 
 
RESOLVED (unanimous) 
 
That the reduction in speed limit proposed be approved and the necessary consultation 
proceed to it into effect be pursued. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



5 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 

4 JULY 2022 
 

 

11     COUNTY MATTER APPLICATIONS 
 

12     FOR THE PROPOSED SOUTHERN EXTENSION TO EXISTING SAND AND GRAVEL 
EXTRACTION OPERATIONS WITH RESTORATION TO LOW LEVEL AGRICULTURE AND 
AMENITY/NATURE CONSERVATION AT LAND SOUTH OF WEST DEEPING QUARRY, 
KING STREET, WEST DEEPING - CEMEX UK OPERATIONS LTD - S22/0756 
 
TO VARY CONDITIONS 2 AND 4 OF PLANNING PERMISSION S19/2127 TO ALLOW 
FOR AN AMENDED PHASING PROGRAMME AND REVISIONS TO THE APPROVED 
RESTORATION SCHEME AT CEMEX WEST DEEPING QUARRY, KING STREET, WEST 
DEEPING - CEMEX UK OPERATIONS LTD - S22/0757 
 

The Committee considered a report which set out details of two concurrent applications 
which had been made by Cemex UK Operations Ltd for proposals which related to their West 
Deeping Quarry, King Street, West Deeping. 
 
The Applications Manager guided members through the report and set out the main issues 
to be considered in the determination of the application. 
 
The report recommended that, following consideration of the relevant development plan 
policies and the comments received through consultation and publicity, that conditional 
planning permissions be granted for both applications. 
 
In considering the applications, members commented that the proposals were logical and it 
was clear that the applications needed to be granted.  It was also important to note that no 
objections to the proposals had been received.  The Committee was advised that there 
would be no additional traffic movements as a result of these proposals. 
 
On a motion proposed by Councillor I G Fleetwood and seconded by Councillor T J N Smith, it 
was: 
 
RESOLVED (unanimous) 
 
That conditional planning permission be granted for application S22/0756. 
 
On a motion proposed by Councillor I G Fleetwood and seconded by Councillor T J N Smith, it 
was: 
 
RESOLVED (Unanimous) 
 
That conditional planning permission be granted for application S22/0757. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



6 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
4 JULY 2022 
 

 

13     FOR THE EXTRACTION OF SAND AND GRAVEL BENEATH FORMER PLANT SITE WITH 
ENHANCED RESTORATION TO AMENITY/NATURE CONSERVATION AT MANOR PIT, 
BASTON OUTGANG ROAD, BASTON - CEMEX UK OPERATIONS LTD - S22/0758 
 

The Committee considered a report where planning permission was sought by Cemex UK 
Operations Ltd for the extraction of sand and gravel beneath former plant site with 
enhanced restoration for amenity/nature conservation at Manor Pit, Baston Outgang Road, 
Baston, in the parish of Baston. 
 
The Applications Manager guided members through the report and set out the main issues 
to be considered in the determination of the application. 
 
The report recommended that following consideration of the relevant development plan 
policies and comments received through consultation and publicity, that conditional 
planning permission be granted. 
 
It was commented that the routing agreement for HGV movements was commensurate with 
the location, and any road safety concerns were being addressed. 
 
On a motion proposed by Councillor R P H Reid, and seconded by Councillor N H Pepper, it 
was: 
 
RESOLVED (unanimous) 
 
That conditional planning permission be granted.  
 
14     TO CHANGE THE USE / EXTENDED USE OF PART OF THE EXISTING CEMEX WEST 

DEEPING QUARRY TO ALLOW FOR THE IMPORTATION OF MINERAL TO THE SITE 
FOR PROCESSING AT CEMEX, WEST DEEPING QUARRY, KING STREET, WEST 
DEEPING - CEMEX UK OPERATIONS LTD - S22/0759 
 

The Committee considered a report where planning permission was sought by Cemex (UK) 
Operations Ltd for a temporary change of use/extended use of part of the existing CEMEX 
West Deeping Quarry to allow for the importation of mineral to the site for processing at 
Cemex, West Deeping Quarry, King Street, West Deeping. 
 
The Applications Manager guided members through the report and set out the main issues 
to be considered in the determination of the application. 
 
The report recommended that following consideration of the relevant development plan 
policies and comments received through consultation and publicity, that conditional 
planning permission be granted. 
 
It was confirmed that this application was time limited, and if necessary, there would be an 
option to make an application for an extension. 
 

Page 10



7 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 

4 JULY 2022 
 

 

On a motion proposed by Councillor T J N Smith, and seconded by Councillor R P H Reid, it 
was: 
 
RESOLVED (unanimous) 
 
That conditional planning permission be granted. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 11.33 am 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

  
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson - Executive Director for Place 

 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 25 July 2022 

Subject: County Matter Application - B/22/0201 

 

Summary: 

Planning permission is sought by V.W.  Breakers UK Ltd (Agent:  Design and 
Management.co.uk) for change of use from Use Class B1/haulage depot to end of life 
vehicles (ELV) dismantling facility at V.W.  Breakers UK Ltd, The Old Smithy, Highgate, 
Leverton. 
 
The proposal site lies within the open countryside and is not identified or allocated for 
industrial or commercial use within the Development Plan.  The land subject of this 
application is covered by an existing planning permission which allows for its use as a 
haulage depot and the land immediately adjoining the proposal site has planning 
permission for light industrial uses (falling within Use Class B1).  Notwithstanding the 
existing permitted use(s), the proposed development would establish an entirely new 
small-scale waste management facility in a rural location.  This site is not well located to 
the market or source of wastes that is intended to serve and in the absence of a proven 
need or sufficiently robust case to justify the establishment of a new ELV waste 
management facility in this rural location the proposal fails to fully comply within Policy 
W7 of the Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan or compliance with Policy 1 of the 
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan. 
 
The closest residential property immediately abuts the proposal site.  The property is in 
separate ownership to the proposal site and is no longer financially linked or associated 
with the current permitted use(s) of the site.  Insufficient evidence or information has 
been presented to demonstrate that impacts such as noise could be controlled to an 
acceptable level or to support or justify exposure of the residents (current and future) 
to higher levels of noise or disruption than might otherwise be acceptable.  Whilst it is 
feasible that many of the other potential impacts associated with the proposed ELV use 
could be controlled, mitigated, minimised and reduced through the use of planning 
conditions, in the absence of any evidence to demonstrate otherwise, the development 
has the potential to have an unacceptable adverse impact on the amenity of the 
residents of this property.  The development is therefore contrary to Policy 2 of the 
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan and DM3 of the Lincolnshire Mineral and Waste Local 
Plan. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4.1



The existing corrugated steel fencing and use of storage containers and trailers as a 
form of boundary treatment around the site is not appropriate as they have an 
unacceptable visual impact and are incongruous with the rural character and charm of 
the local area.  The retention of these structures is therefore not suitable and is contrary 
to Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan and Policies DM3 and DM6 
of the Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan. 
 

 

Recommendation: 

Following consideration of the relevant development plan policies and the comments 
received through consultation and publicity it is recommended that planning permission 
be refused. 
 

 
Background 
 
1. This application relates to part of a wider site that has historically been used as 

haulage depot and which also has planning permission for light industrial use (Use 
Class B1) as granted by Boston Borough Council (BBC).  As this proposal relates to a 
proposed waste management use the application has been made to the County 
Council as Waste Planning Authority.  The extant planning permissions of relevance 
to this case are as follows: 

 
2. B15/0290/96 (granted by BBC on 9 December 1996) for “Change of use from auto 

engineering and agricultural land to haulage depot”.  This permission covers a 
much wider area which includes the current application site.  There are very few 
planning conditions or controls on this permission with these being limited to a 
requirement that between the hours of 22:00 and 7:00 any refrigeration plant is to 
be connected directly to the mains electricity supply; that only 15 vehicles can 
operate from the site and that the dwelling house located at the front of the site is 
to be occupied by someone that is employed or associated with the haulage use.  
There are no restrictions on operating hours or vehicle movements and so any 
changes would be lawful under the terms of this planning permission. 

 
3. B20/0237 (granted by BBC on 15 September 2020) for “Change of use from 

haulage depot to light industrial (Class B1) with ancillary warehousing and creation 
of new site access”.  This permission covers an access track, building and land 
immediately abutting the south-eastern boundary of the current application site 
and is used by the applicant for handling and storage of pre-treated/imported 
vehicle parts.  Conditions attached to this permission restrict the use of the 
premises to that defined in Use Class B1 and the operating hours to between 0700 
and 1800 hours Monday to Friday, 0800 and 1600 on Saturdays and between 0900 
and 1700 hours on Public Holidays.  The site is not permitted to operate on 
Sundays.  Another condition requires all works involving the use of electric hand 
tools and forklifts to take place within the confines of the building. 

 
 

Page 14



The Application 
 
4. Planning permission (part retrospective) is sought for the change of use of land to 

an end-of-life vehicle (ELV) de-pollution, dismantling and storage facility at The Old 
Smithy, Highgate, Leverton.  The application site occupies land that retains 
planning permission for use as a haulage depot (ref: B15/0290/96) and is adjacent 
to a wider plot that once formed part of the permitted haulage depot, but which 
has recently been granted planning permission by Boston Borough Council for Light 
Industrial Use (Use Class B1) (ref: B20/2037).  The land subject of this application is 
a roughly rectangular in shape and lies centrally within the wider site and includes 
the open yard and all existing buildings within its footprint. 

 
 
5. This application is part retrospective in that the site is already in use however, the 

main depollution and dismantling operations proposed as part of this application 
have yet to commence.  At present the site is largely being used for the 
importation and storage and used car parts that have already been stripped and 
removed from ELV’s at one of the applicant’s other premises.  These parts are 
delivered to the site in containers where they are unloaded and stored within both 
the application site and the adjoining shed and yard area that is covered by 
permission B20/0237. 

 

Location Plan 

Existing and Proposed Plans 

Page 15



6. This proposal is seeking permission to use the land and existing buildings falling 
within the application site as an ELV depollution, dismantling and storage facility 
which would operate in conjunction with the current use carried out on the 
adjoining plot (subject of permission B20/0237).  In addition to the existing 
activities, it is proposed that vehicles would be delivered to the site where they 
would be stripped and processed to recover reusable car parts that can then be 
sold (via the internet) for use by individuals or businesses elsewhere.  It is expected 
that no more than three vehicles would be processed per week 

 

 
 
7. Below is a summary of the typical processes and operations that would be 

undertaken: 
 

• upon delivery to the site the vehicles would be stored inside the identified 
depollution building 

• all of the liquids (e.g. brake fluid, fuel, oils and coolants) would be drained and 
removed on a concreted surface and stored in separate containers.  These 
would later be removed by a licensed operator 

• the engine and all usable spare parts (e.g. air bags, plastics, seats, etc) would be 
removed and transferred for storage either within the application site (yard 
and buildings) or within the adjoining site (e.g. land and building subject of 
permission B/20/0237).  Parts stored within the building would be on 
racks/shelving 

• the shells of depolluted vehicles would be temporarily taken outside and 
stored on the external yard ready from removal off-site to a scrapyard. 

Proposed ELV Processing Building 

Page 16



 
 
8. The equipment to be used on site includes a hydraulic access ramp, liquid 

decommissioning equipment and small, electrically powered hand tools.  There are 
no proposals to use heavy machinery or equipment or to undertake crushing at the 
site.  In terms of mobile plant, an electric forklift would be used on site to help 
move materials around. 

 
9. The proposed hours of operation are between 0800 and 1700 hours Monday to 

Friday only which are reduced from those currently permitted by permission 
B20/0237) which allow operations between 0700 and 1800 hours Monday to 
Friday; 0800 and 1600 hours on Saturdays and 0900 and 1700 on Bank/Public 
Holidays. 

 
Site and Surroundings 
 
10. The proposal site lies approximately 2.5km to the north-east of the village of 

Leverton, 9km to the north-east of Boston and 20km to the south-west of 
Skegness.  The site is located outside the development limits of Leverton and so 
lies within the countryside and is surrounded by agricultural land with a number of 
residential properties located nearby.  The nearest of these residential properties 
immediately adjoins the proposal site and is in separate ownership to the proposal 
site although is occupied by the former owner/operator of the site.   

 
11. The land subject of this application is a roughly rectangular in shape and lies 

centrally within a wider area of open yard which accommodates two main existing 
buildings.  The building lying within the footprint of this application is a steel 
framed unit with corrugated steel walls and flat roof.  This building is proposed to 
be used as the main ELV depollution building.  The external yard is currently being 
used for the storage of old vehicles and car parts.  A brick built shed with 
corrugated steel roof and portacabin unit lie outside the footprint of this 
application and are currently being used for the storage of pre-treated car parts 
and an office.  The portacabin building is proposed to be relocated into the 
application site for use as an office.  The majority of the site’s boundaries are 
formed by three high corrugated steel sheet fence panels and/or shipping 
containers/trailers.  A 2m high palisade security fence is also present in places.  

External Yard 

Page 17



Some of the shipping containers present on-site lie outside the application 
boundary of this application and do not appear to have consent under the terms of 
the existing permissions. 

 
 
12. Access to the site is gained off Highgate via a hardcore track which runs along the 

south-eastern boundary of the site (which was formed as part of planning 
permission B20/0237).   

 
 

 
Main Planning Considerations 
 
Planning Policy Context 
 
13. The National Planning Policy Framework (July 2021) - sets out the Government's 

planning policies for England.  It is a material consideration in determination of 
planning applications and adopts a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development.  A number of paragraphs are of particular relevance to this 
application are as follows: 

 
Paragraphs 7 to 11 (Sustainable development) - states that there is a presumption 
in favour of sustainable development.  Sustainable comprises of three overarching 

View from Highgate 

Site Access Access Track off Highgate 

Page 18



objectives which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually 
supportive ways.  These objectives are economic, social and environmental.   

 
Paragraph 47 and 48 (Determining applications) - planning law requires that 
applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the 
development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  Decisions on 
applications should be made as quickly as possible.  Local planning authorities may 
give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to the stage of 
preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the greater 
the weight that may be given). 

 
Paragraphs 55 and 56 (Planning Conditions) - planning authorities should consider 
whether otherwise unacceptable development could be made acceptable through 
the use of conditions or planning obligations.  Planning conditions should be kept 
to a minimum and only imposed where they are necessary, relevant to planning 
and to the development to be permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all 
other respects. 

 
Paragraphs 81 to 83 (Building a strong economy) - decisions should help create the 
conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt.  Significant weight 
should be placed on the need to support economic growth and productivity, taking 
into account both local business needs and wider opportunities for development.  
Planning policies and decisions should recognise and address the specific locational 
requirements of different sectors. 

 
Paragraph 84 and 85 (Supporting a prosperous rural economy) - advises that 
decisions should enable the sustainable growth and expansion of all types of 
business in rural areas, both through conversion of existing buildings and well-
designed new buildings.  Planning policies and decisions should recognise that sites 
to meet local business and community needs in rural areas may have to be found 
adjacent to or beyond existing settlements, and in locations that are not well 
served by public transport.  In these circumstances it will be important to ensure 
that development is sensitive to its surroundings, does not have an unacceptable 
impact on local roads and exploits any opportunities to make a location more 
sustainable (for example by improving the scope for access on foot, by cycling or 
by public transport).  The use of previously developed land, and sites that are 
physically well-related to existing settlements, should be encouraged where 
suitable opportunities exist. 

 
Paragraphs 110 to 112 (Promoting sustainable transport) - states that when 
considering development proposals it is necessary to ensure that there is safe and 
suitable access to the site and that any significant impact from the development on 
highway safety is mitigated, would not have severe residual cumulative impacts on 
the road network and addresses the needs of people with disabilities and reduced 
mobility. 

 

Page 19



Paragraph 123 (Making effective use of land) - local planning authorities should 
also take a positive approach to applications for alternative uses of land which is 
currently developed but not allocated for a specific purpose in plans, where this 
would help to meet identified development needs. 

 
Paragraph 130 (Supporting good design and protecting amenity) - amongst other 
criteria, it is advised that decisions should ensure that developments will function 
well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term but over 
the lifetime of the development; are visually attractive as a result of good 
architecture, layout and appropriate and effective landscaping; and are 
sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging 
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities). 

 
Paragraph 166 and 167 (Planning and flood risk) - decisions should ensure that the 
development is appropriately flood resistant and resilient such that, in the event of 
a flood, it could be quickly brought back into use without significant refurbishment. 

 
Paragraph 183, 185 and 187 (Ground conditions and pollution) - state that decision 
should ensure that a site is suitable for its proposed use taking account of ground 
conditions and any risks arising from land instability and contamination.  This 
includes risks arising from natural hazards or former activities such as mining, and 
any proposals for mitigation including land remediation (as well as potential 
impacts on the natural environment arising from that remediation).  Ensuring 
development appropriate for its location by taking into account the likely effects 
on health, living condition and the natural environment through mitigation and 
reduction of potential adverse impacts.  The focus should be on whether proposed 
development is an acceptable use of land, rather than the control of processes or 
emissions (where these are subject to separate pollution control regimes. 

 
Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan: Core Strategy and Development 
Management Policies (2016) (CSDMP) – the following policies are of relevance to 
this application: 

 
Policy W1 (Future requirements for new waste facilities) - states that the County 
Council will, through the Site Locations document, identify locations for a range of 
new or extended waste management facilities within Lincolnshire where these are 
necessary to meet the predicated capacity gaps for waste arising in the county up 
to and including 2031 

 
Policy W3 (Spatial Strategy for New Waste Facilities) - states that proposals for new 
waste facilities, including extensions to existing waste facilities, will be permitted in 
and around the main urban areas subject to the criteria of Policy W4.  It is added 
that proposals for new waste facilities, outside an urban area will only be 
permitted where they are: 

 

Page 20



• facilities for the biological treatment of waste including anaerobic digestion 
and open-air windrow composting (see Policy W5) 

• the treatment of waste water and sewage (see Policy W9) 

• landfilling of waste (see Policy W6) 

• small-scale waste facilities (see Policy W7). 
 

Policy W7 (Small Scale Facilities) - states planning permission will be granted for 
small scale waste facilities, including small extensions to existing waste facilities, 
outside of those areas specified in Policy W3 provided that: 

 

• there is a proven need to locate such a facility outside of the main urban areas; 
and 

• the proposals accord with all relevant Development Management Policies set 
out in the Plan; and 

• the facility would be well located to the arisings of the waste it would manage; 
and 

• they would be located on land which constitutes previously developed and/or 
contaminated land, existing or planned industrial/employment land, or 
redundant agricultural and forestry buildings and their curtilages. 

 
Policy DM1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development) - states that 
when considering development proposals, the County Council will take a positive 
approach.  Planning applications that accord with the policies in this Local Plan will 
be approved without delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 
Policy DM2 (Climate Change) - states that proposals for minerals and waste 
management developments should address, amongst others, the following matter 
where applicable: 

 

• Minerals and Waste – Locations which reduce distances travelled by HGVs in 
the supply of minerals and the treatment of waste; and 

• Waste – Implement the Waste Hierarchy and reduce waste to landfill. 
 

Policy DM3 (Quality of life and amenity) - states that planning permission will be 
granted for minerals and waste development provided that it does not generate 
unacceptable adverse impacts to occupants of nearby dwellings or other sensitive 
receptors as a result of a range of different factors/criteria (e.g.  noise, dust, 
vibrations, visual intrusion, etc.) 

 
Policy DM6 (Impact on Landscape and Townscape) - states that planning 
permission will be granted provided that due regard has been given to the likely 
impact of the proposed development on the landscape, including landscape 
character, valued or distinctive landscape features and elements and important 
views.  If necessary additional design, landscaping, planting and screening will also 
be required and where new planting is required it will be subject to a minimum 10 
year maintenance period.  Development that would result in residual, adverse 
landscape and visual impacts will only be approved if the impacts are acceptable 

Page 21



when weighed against the benefits of the scheme.  Where there would be 
significant adverse impacts on a valued landscape considered weight will be given 
to the conservation of that landscape. 

 
Policy DM14 (Transport by Road) - states that planning permission will be granted 
for minerals and waste development involving transport by road where the 
highways network is of appropriate standard for use by the traffic generated by the 
development and arrangements for site access would not have an unacceptable 
impact on highway safety, free flow of traffic, residential amenity or the 
environment. 

 
Policy DM15 (Flooding and Flood Risk) - states that proposals for minerals and 
waste developments will need to demonstrate that they can be developed without 
increasing the risk of flooding both to the site of the proposal and the surrounding 
area, taking into account all potential sources of flooding and increased risks from 
climate change induced flooding.  Minerals and waste development proposals 
should be designed to avoid and wherever possible reduce the risk of flooding both 
during and following the completion of operations.  Development that is likely to 
create a material increase in the risk of off-site flooding will not be permitted. 

 
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) (SELLP) – the following policies are 
relevant to this application: 

 
Policy 1 (Spatial Strategy) - lists a hierarchy of settlements.  All land outside of the 
identified settlements falls within the Countryside and development will be 
permitted which is necessary to such a location and/or where it can be 
demonstrated that it meets the sustainable development needs of the area in 
terms of economic, community or environmental benefits. 

 
Policy 2 (Development Management) - states proposals requiring planning 
permission for development will be permitted provided that sustainable 
development considerations are met, specifically in relation to: 

 
1.   size, scale, layout, density and impact on the amenity, trees, character and 

appearance of the area and the relationship to existing development and land 
uses 

2.   quality of design and orientation 
3.   maximising the use of sustainable materials and resources 
4.   access and vehicle generation levels 
5.   the capacity of existing community services and infrastructure 
6.  impact upon neighbouring land uses by reason of noise, odour, disturbance or 

visual intrusion 
7.   sustainable drainage and flood risk 
8.   impact or enhancement for areas of natural habitats and historical buildings 

and heritage assets. 
 

Page 22



Policy 3 (Design of New Development) - states all development should create 
distinctive places through the use of high quality and inclusive design and layout 
and, where appropriate, make innovative use of local traditional styles and 
materials.  Design which is inappropriate to the local area, or which fails to 
maximise opportunities for improving the character and quality of an area, will not 
be acceptable.  Development proposals are required to demonstrate compliance 
with a range of criteria/issues set out within the policy and of particular relevance 
in this case includes: the landscape character of the location and; residential 
amenity. 

 
Policy 4 (Approach to Flood Risk) - sets out the criteria to be applied when 
considering the impact of development to and from flooding.  It states that 
development proposed within an area at risk of flooding (Flood Zones 2 and 3 of 
the Environment Agency’s flood map or at risk during a breach or overtopping 
scenario as shown on the flood hazard and depths maps in the Strategic Flood Risk 
Assessment) application must be supported by a site specific flood risk assessment, 
covering risk from all sources of flooding including the impacts of climate change.  
The Flood Risk Assessment should demonstrate the location of the development 
meets the Sequential Test and demonstrate that the vulnerability of a proposed 
use is compatible with the relevant flood zone.  It also states that appropriate 
drainage and flood resistance and resilience measures should be provided and that 
where necessary appropriate flood warning and evacuation procedures be 
demonstrated. 

 
Policy 30 (Pollution) - states that development proposals will not be permitted 
where, taking account of any proposed mitigation measures, they would lead to 
unacceptable adverse impacts upon: 

 
1.   health and safety of the public 
2.   the amenities of the area; or 
3.   the natural, historic and built environment 
4.   air quality, including fumes and odour 
5.   noise including vibration 
6.   light levels 
7.   land quality and condition; or 
8.   surface and groundwater quality. 

 
Results of Consultation and Publicity 
 
14. (a) Local County Council Member, Councillor P Skinner – is also a member of the 

Planning and Regulation Committee and therefore reserves his position and 
any comments on the proposal until the application is considered by the 
Committee. 

 
 (b) Leverton Parish  Council – fully supports the objections raised by Boston 

Borough Council to this proposal (see below) and objects to this proposal for 
the same grounds/reasons. 

Page 23



 
 (c) Environment Agency (EA) – no objection but has advised that a Flood 

Warning and Evacuation Plan be produced in order to address the residual 
risks of flooding at the site and to confirm the approach that will be taken for 
safe evacuation of the area.  It is also advised that the dismantling of end-of-
life vehicles will require an Environmental Permit from the Environment 
Agency and details of how to obtain such a Permit are provided and advised 
to be forwarded onto the applicant as an Informative. 

 
 (d) Environmental Health Officer (Boston Borough Council) – initially responded 

commenting that it was unclear what is proposed and requested that a full 
description of the activities involved on the site as part of the proposed end 
of life vehicle operations, where these would take place and equipment used 
be provided.  The information supporting the application (inc.  noise 
assessment, contaminated land assessment and air quality assessment) are 
short statements and not full assessments.  The main issue here is that of 
noise, particularly in relation to the residential property at the frontage of the 
site which appears to be in separate ownership from the business.  This new 
proposal may impact upon residential amenity of this property and therefore 
it is critical site activities are fully understood. 

 
  Further information was subsequently submitted by the applicant setting out 

a case for the need and justification for this location and clarification on the 
operations to be carried out.  This was forwarded onto the EHO (via Boston 
Borough Council) and further comments invited.  No further response has 
been received. 

 
 (e) Highway and Lead Local Flood Authority (Lincolnshire County Council) – does 

not object to this proposal.  It is commented that the use of this land and 
these buildings for an end-of-life vehicle dismantling facility would not be 
expected to have an unacceptable impact upon highway safety or a severe 
residual cumulative impact upon the local highway network.  The site is 
accessed from an existing vehicle access that had been used for HGVs and is 
therefore suitable for the proposed use. 

 
 (f) Lincolnshire Police – no objections. 
 

The following person/bodies were also consulted on the application but not 
response had been received within the statutory consultation period or by the time 
this report was prepared: 

 
Old Leake Parish Council (adjoining Parish) 
Historic Places (Lincolnshire County Council) 
Public Health (Lincolnshire County Council) 
Lincolnshire Fire & Rescue 

 

Page 24



The application has been publicised by notices posted at the site (posted 10 May 
2022) and in the local press (Lincolnshire Free Press on 17 May 2022).  Letters of 
notification were also sent to the nearest neighbouring residents.   

 
15. Two representations have been received as a result of this publicity/notification 

which object to the development.  A summary and outline of the objections and 
comments made are as follows: 

 

• The site has been operating as an end-of-life vehicle facility without planning 
permission for one year.  During this time it has had a negative impact on the 
air quality due to the regular burning of waste and obtrusive noise as a result of 
the dismantling operations. 

• This industrial activity is more suited to an industrial area where environmental 
impact would be much less. 

• A static caravan has been stationed on the site which appears to be for living 
accommodation however this does not appear to have planning permission.   

• There are a large number of shipping containers of different colours around the 
site which do not blend in with the rural countryside.  These containers have 
been used for storage for over one year and do not appear to have permission. 

• The grassfield at the side of the site has been used for car racing.  Concerns 
expressed that cars could crash through the fence and pose a danger to 
children who walk past the site.  Similarly concerns about the speed of vehicles 
using the highway that access the site and the risk to walkers, joggers and 
cyclists who use the area. 

• Increased traffic from this development will lead to more damage to the 
highway and other road users. 

• Oil, fuel, rubber and plastic arising from the dismantling of vehicles should be 
stored in safe conditions to avoid contamination of nearby dykes and water 
courses.  Burning or waste should be prevented and wastes collected by 
authorised persons. 

• Suggestion that a hedge be planted around the site or a bank or high fence to 
hide the site in the short-term, but which would provide longer-term screening. 

 
District Council’s Recommendations 
 
16. Boston Borough Council raise concerns to the proposed change of use for the 

following reasons:  
 

• The site is located in the open countryside.  It does not propose an agricultural 
or rural business and does not demonstrate that it is necessary to such a 
location, as per Policy 1 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan.  In the first 
instance, the proposed use should be directed to allocated employment sites 
or established industrial areas within the Borough.   

• The level of information submitted with the application is insufficient to fully 
assess the impacts of the proposal.   

• The proposal has the potential to adversely impact upon the amenity of 
neighbouring properties through noise, vibrations, odour, outside storage and 

Page 25



vehicle movements, contrary to Policy 2 and Policy 30 of the South East 
Lincolnshire Local Plan 

 
Further information was subsequently submitted by the applicant setting out a 
case for the need and justification for this location and clarification on the 
operations to be carried out.  This was forwarded onto Boston Borough Council 
and further comments invited.  No further response has been received. 

 
Conclusions 
 
17. The main issues to be considered in the determination of this application are 

whether the proposed development is acceptable given its location within the 
countryside and whether the proposed use can be carried out causing 
unacceptable harm or detriment to residential amenity and the environment. 

 
Locational Considerations 
 
18. In spatial and locational terms, the broad thrust and ethos of planning policy is to 

direct most new development towards urban centres and settlements, sites 
allocated for such purposes (as identified in the Development Plan) and away from 
rural areas and the open countryside.  This is reflected in Policy 1 of the SELLP 
which states development in the open countryside will only be permitted where it 
is necessary to such a location and/or where it can be demonstrated that it meets 
the sustainable development needs of the area in terms of economic, community 
or environmental benefits.  Policy W3 of the CSDMP similarly reflects this broad 
approach by seeking to direct and lend support to the establishment of waste 
management facilities in and around the main urban areas with only certain types 
of facility being supported outside of those areas.  Types of facility that are 
identified as considered suitable outside of main urban areas include small-scale 
waste management facilities which are then required to demonstrate compliance 
with the criteria under Policy W7.   

 
19. Policy W7 of the CSDMP states that small-scale facilities can be acceptable if there 

is a proven need to locate such a facility outside of the main urban areas; the 
facility would be well located to the arisings of the waste it would manage; it 
would be located on land which is constitutes previously developed and/or 
contaminated land, existing or planned industrial/employment land, or redundant 
agricultural and forestry buildings and their curtilages, and; the proposal accords 
with all relevant Development Management policies set out in the Plan. 

 
20. Consideration is therefore given to each of these criteria below. 
 

Proven need & well located to source of wastes - Policy W1 of the CSDMP supports 
the development of waste management facilities where these are necessary to 
meet an identified capacity gap for wastes arisings in the County.  ELV facilities 
such as this are not listed as a specific waste management type/facility and 
therefore a need or capacity gap has not been identified at a strategic level.  The 

Page 26



absence of any strategic requirement does not however mean that proposals 
which seek to establish such facilities cannot be acceptable so long as they meet 
the spatial and locational policies of the CSDMP; meet any other specific criteria as 
set out within relevant policies, and; where they are capable of being operated 
without giving rise to any unacceptable adverse environmental or amenity impacts. 

 
The need case presented by the applicant is largely based on economic, 
operational and efficiency benefits that it is argued are offered by co-locating the 
ELV process with the existing car parts/sales business.  The applicant has advised 
that ELV wastes arise nationally and are currently dismantled elsewhere with pre-
treated, reusable parts being brought to the site for minor processing prior to sale 
via the internet.  By enabling ELVs to be processed on-site and co-locating these 
with the existing industrial/sales business, it is argued this will achieve greater 
efficiency and control over the entire dismantling and recovery process allowing 
immediate distinction to be made between those parts that are reusable and those 
that are not.  It is argued overheads and operational costs can also be reduced by 
having a single site thereby helping to support the economic viability of the 
business and safeguard existing employment.  In fact, it is stated that the applicant 
has recently relocated to this site from a local industrial estate simply because the 
cost and space constraints were unsustainable for the business.   

 
Policy 1 of the SELLP does allow for development in the open countryside where 
there are clear economic or environmental benefits however it also seeks to limit 
development to that which is necessary in such a location.  Similarly, Policy W7 of 
the CSDMP requires applicants to demonstrate a proven need for their facilities 
and given this site is in a rural location greater scrutiny and evidence needs to be 
presented before the establishment of such a facility can be supported.   

 
In this case, whilst I accept there may be economic and sustainability benefits to be 
gained by co-locating the two elements of the applicant’s business, I do not 
consider these sufficient to support or justify this proposal and insufficient 
evidence has been presented to demonstrate a quantitative or proven need to 
support the establishment of a ELV facility in this rural location.  The nearest main 
urban areas are Boston and Skegness however, these are some distance from the 
site and it is unlikely there would be enough vehicles from within a reasonable 
radius of this rural site to maintain this activity alone.  In fact, the applicant admits 
that ELV wastes are sourced nationally and so in fact would come from much 
further afield than the local area.  This therefore supports my view that this site is 
not well located to the market or source of wastes that is intended to serve and in 
the absence of a proven need or sufficiently robust case to justify the 
establishment of a new ELV waste management facility in this rural location the 
proposal fails to meet 2 of the 4 criteria within Policy W7 or compliance with Policy 
1 of the SELLP.   

 
Suitable site/existing permitted use - Policy W7 requires small-scale waste 
management facilities outside of main urban areas to be located on a certain 
specified types of land or sites.  The purpose of this criterion is to limit new 

Page 27



development to the re-use and re-development of existing land/sites rather than 
the creation of new sites which would lead to a loss of greenfield land.  Examples 
of suitable sites identified within Policy W7 includes existing or planned industrial 
and employment land.   

 
The proposal site is not identified or allocated for industrial or commercial use 
within the Development Plan (both the SELLP and CSDMP) however the land 
subject of this application is covered by planning permission B15/0290/96 which 
allows for the use of the premises as a haulage depot.  The access track which 
serves this site (along with the land that lies outside the footprint of this proposal 
site but which is functionally linked to it) is subject of planning permission 
B20/0237 and allows for light industrial uses (Use Class B1).  The application (as 
submitted) proposes a change of use to the land and existing permitted building 
and does not seek to extend the lateral footprint or boundaries of the permitted 
haulage depot.  All activities associated with this use are proposed to take place 
within the confines of the site and/or permitted building and so not lead to any 
further encroachment or expansion into the surrounding countryside.  Given the 
existing permitted use of the land and building, the redevelopment and use of 
these for a small-scale ELV development would accord with the types of site 
identified as suitable by Policy W7. 

 
Environmental and amenity considerations/compliance with other Development 
Management Policies 
 
21. Under this proposal the number of daily HGV vehicles movements is low and so 

would be much less than that which was experienced when the site operated as a 
haulage depot.  Similarly, the land immediately adjoining this site (which is 
functionally linked and owned by the applicant) allows for light industrial uses 
falling within Use Class B1.  This permission therefore allows a range of potentially 
very different light industrial activities and uses to be carried out on the adjoining 
site without the need for any further consideration or planning permission to be 
sought.  Although there is a condition which limits the operating hours on the 
adjoining industrial land, like the haulage depot permission, there is no restriction 
on HGV movements associated with that use.  Therefore, if the haulage use were 
to resume or there was an increase in HGV traffic associated with the adjoining use 
this would be lawful under the terms of the current planning permissions.  
Consequently, whilst objections have been raised by local residents about traffic 
movements associated with the proposed ELV use, no objections have been raised 
by the Highways Officer and given the low number of traffic movements proposed 
when compared with that which could feasibly and lawfully be experienced in 
association with the current permitted use(s), this proposal would not have a 
severe impact on the function, safety or condition of the local highway network. 

 
22. In terms of other potential impacts, as indicted the proposed ELV use would be a 

small-scale operation and akin to that of light industrial uses which, subject to 
certain conditions, have been deemed acceptable on the land that immediately 
adjoins the proposal site.  Boston Borough Council has imposed planning 

Page 28



conditions on the use of the adjoining light industrial land to limit operating hours 
and which require tools and equipment to be used inside of the building.  These 
were imposed to safeguard the amenity of the nearby residents.  Whilst it is 
feasible that many of the potential impacts associated with the proposed ELV use 
could also be controlled, mitigated, minimised and reduced through the use of 
planning conditions (e.g.  restrictions on hours of use, traffic movements, storage 
heights, flood risk, etc) a notable difference between the ELV use proposed and 
that of the existing permitted haulage depot use and adjoining light industrial use 
is the relationship and proximity of this development to the nearest residential 
property.   

 
23. In respect of the recently permitted industrial use, the proposed ELV site lies 

between this and that of the closest residential property and so provides some 
separation between these two uses.  Conversely, this residential property shares 
an immediate boundary with the proposed ELV site and whilst this land does retain 
a permission for use as a haulage depot, a condition imposed on that permission 
requires the residential property to be occupied by someone that is employed or 
associated with that use.  Although the residential property is currently occupied 
by the former owner/occupier of the haulage depot, it is in separate ownership 
and so no longer financially linked or associated with the use of this site.  Although 
no objection has been received from the occupier of this property to this proposal, 
it is nevertheless incumbent upon the Waste Planning Authority to ensure 
consideration is given to protecting the amenity of the current and any future 
residents of this property.  Insufficient evidence or information has been presented 
by the applicant to demonstrate that impacts such as noise could be controlled to 
an acceptable level or that there are grounds to support or justify exposure of the 
residents of this property to higher levels of noise or disruption than might 
otherwise be accepted (i.e. a financial link or relationship with the site or the 
applicant/owner of the development).  Consequently, in the absence of any 
evidence to demonstrate otherwise, the development has the potential to have an 
unacceptable adverse impact on the amenity of the residents of this property 
(current or future) and so has failed to demonstrate compliance with Policy 2 of 
the SELLP and DM3 of the CSDMP. 

 
24. Policies 2 and 3 of the SELLP and DM3 and DM6 of the CSDMP seek to ensure that 

development is well designed and contributes positively to the character and 
quality of the area within which it is located and not have an adverse landscape 
and visual impact.  In this case, the proposal site contains a number of existing 
buildings which already benefit from planning permission and, other than a few 
minor changes to the external elevations, these are to be retained and used to 
carry out the ELV operations and supporting ancillary activities.  Currently a 
number of shipping container/storage units, trailers and an approx. 3m high 
corrugated steel panel fence are also present in and around the boundaries of the 
proposal site and access track leading to it.  The plans submitted as part of this 
application do not identify the existence of these structures/features and 
comments contained within the representations received to this application, along 
with lack of reference to these in the Officer report that granted planning 

Page 29



permission for the adjoining industrial use in 2020 and photographs supporting 
that application, suggest these have been added in recent years and do not appear 
to benefit from any planning permission.  The existing layout plans supporting the 
application do not show these features and the proposed layout plans only show 
the proposed erection of a 2m palisade fence around the frontage of the site and 
relocation of an office unit from the adjoining industrial land into the site.  
Although the plans also show the proposed retention of a number of shipping 
container storage units nearby, these fall outside the boundary of this application.   

 
25. It would appear that the existing fencing, containers and trailers around the site 

are proposed to be retained as part of this proposal given they seem to have been 
added to the since the applicant took over ownership of it.  The corrugated steel 
fencing and use of storage containers and trailers as a form of boundary treatment 
is not considered appropriate as they are themselves incongruous with the rural 
character and charm of the local area and have an unacceptable negative visual 
impact on the area.  The retention of these structures is therefore not considered 
suitable and would be contrary to Policy 2 and 3 of the SELLP and Policies DM3 and 
DM6 of the CSDMP. 

 
Human Rights Implications 
 
26. The Committee's role is to consider and assess the effects that the proposal will 

have on the rights of individuals as afforded by the Human Rights Act (principally 
Articles 1 and 8) and weigh these against the wider public interest in determining 
whether or not planning permission should be granted.  This is a balancing exercise 
and matter of planning judgement.  In this case, having considered the information 
and facts as set out within this report, should planning permission be granted the 
decision would be proportionate and not in breach of the Human Rights Act 
(Articles 1 & 8) and the Council would have met its obligation to have due regard to 
its public sector equality duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 
Final Conclusion 
 
27. The proposed development would establish an entirely new small-scale waste 

management facility in a rural location.  The applicant has failed to demonstrate 
that there is a proven need to locate this facility outside of a main town/settlement 
and that it would be well located to the arisings of the waste that it would manage.  
Furthermore, the style of fencing and use of trailers and storge containers/units 
erected around the boundaries of the site as a means to define the site and screen 
activities have an adverse visual impact which affects the rural character and 
charm of the local area.  The retention of these structures is therefore not 
considered suitable and would be contrary to Policy 2 and 3 of the SELLP and 
Policies DM3 and DM6 of the CSDMP. 

 
 
 

Page 30



RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
That planning permission be refused for the following reasons: 
 
1. The proposed development lies within the open countryside and would establish 

an entirely new small-scale waste management facility in a rural location.  The site 
is not well located to the market or source of wastes that is intended to serve and 
the applicant has failed to demonstrate a proven need or sufficiently robust case to 
justify the establishment of such a facility in this rural location.  The propped 
development is therefore contrary to Policy 1 of the South East Lincolnshire Local 
Plan and has failed to demonstrate full compliance with Policy W7 of the 
Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan. 

 
2. The closest residential property to the development immediately abuts the 

proposal site.  The property is in separate ownership to the proposal site and is no 
longer financially linked or associated with the current permitted use(s) of the site.  
Insufficient evidence or information has been presented to demonstrate that 
impacts such as noise could be controlled to an acceptable level or to support or 
justify exposure of the residents (current and future) to higher levels of noise or 
disruption than might otherwise be acceptable.  The development therefore has 
the potential to have an unacceptable adverse impact on the amenity of the 
residents of this property and so is contrary to Policy 2 of the South East 
Lincolnshire Local Plan and Policy DM3 and full compliance with Policy W7 of the 
Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan. 

 
3. The existing corrugated steel fencing and use of storage containers and trailers as a 

form of boundary treatment around the site is not appropriate as they have an 
unacceptable visual impact and are incongruous with the rural character and 
charm of the local area.  The retention of these structures is therefore not suitable 
and is contrary to Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan and 
Policies DM3, DM6 and full compliance with Policy W7 of the Lincolnshire Minerals 
and Waste Local Plan. 

 
Informative 
 
Attention is drawn to: 
 
(i) In dealing with this application the Waste Planning Authority has worked with the 

applicant in a positive and proactive manner by seeking further information from 
the applicant in response to issues raised and processing the application efficiently 
so as to prevent any unnecessary delay.  This approach ensures the application is 
handled in a positive way to foster the delivery of sustainable development which 
is consistent with the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework and 
as required by Article 35(2) of the Town & Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure)(England) Order 2015. 

 

Page 31



Appendix 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Committee Plan 

 
 
Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were relied 
upon in the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Planning Application File 
B/22/0201 

Lincolnshire County Council’s website 
https://lincolnshire.planning-register.co.uk/ 

National Planning Policy 
Framework (2021) 

The Government's website 
www.gov.uk 

Lincolnshire Minerals & 
Waste Local Plan (2016) 

Lincolnshire County Council's website 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk  

South East Lincolnshire 
Local Plan (2019) 

Boston Borough Council’s website 
www.mybostonuk.com  

 
This report was written by Marc Willis, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
dev_planningsupport@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 32

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Flincolnshire.planning-register.co.uk%2F&data=04%7C01%7CElaine.Wrath%40lincolnshire.gov.uk%7Cb891fec9615541ed7b5708d920431d9d%7Cb4e05b92f8ce46b59b2499ba5c11e5e9%7C0%7C0%7C637576294890106103%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=1sqin2TYVr8346Od2buMg61mr%2B0UAMZfWbUFQEyob9c%3D&reserved=0
http://www.gov.uk/
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/
http://www.mybostonuk.com/
mailto:dev_pcg@lincolnshire.gov.uk


Drain

Bee
ch

 T
re

e 
Far

m

D
ra

in

Garage

D
ra

in

D
rain

D
ra

in

Lynwood
GP

T
rack

D
ra

in
Site Of Application

B20/0237 Light Industrial Use
(Class B1) Permission

B15/0296/96 Haulage Depot Permission Closest Residential Dwelling

Access



LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Location: For change of use from Use Class B1/haulage depot
to end of life vehicles (ELV) dismantling facility



Lincolnshire County Council
You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to,

or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any 

of the data to third parties in any form.

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019
OS Licence number 100025370

Prevailing Wind Direction from the south-west 

Application No:
Scale: 1:1250

V.W. Breakers UK Ltd
The Old Smithy
Highgate, Leverton

B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201B/22/0201

PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 25 JULY 2022

Appendix A

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee held on 4 July 2022
	4.1 For change of use from Use Class B1/haulage depot to end of life vehicles (ELV) dismantling facility at V.W. Breakers UK Ltd, The Old Smithy, Highgate, Leverton - V.W. Breakers UK Ltd, (Agent: Design and Management.co.uk) - B/22/0201

